Annual
Report

2022-2023

/
VY




Introduction @
The A._FAQ Governing Body @
Mission @
Directors’” Report @
AFAQ Departments

1 Resea:rch 8 )
2 Training. @
3 Leaders' Club @
4 Counseling & Career. Guidai';cé 16 )
5 Encyclopedia Program'.‘._ __ 18
6 Financial Statement @

/\

©



Introduction

Association for Academic Quality (AFAQ), is a not-for-profit company operating under
Section 42 of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. It is certified by PCP
(Pakistan Center of Philanthropy) for governance, transparency and program delivery.
Itis a movement to raise the educational standards in Pakistan. It has been established
as a voluntary organization in collaboration with the leading school systems of
Pakistan. This venture is supported by expatriate Pakistanis, leading scholars,
educationists and professionals in Pakistan. The board of governors guides the
operations of AFAQ. The general membership of this organization is open to all schools,
educational systems, research organizations and training institutions with a general
focus on quality.

AFAQ covers the following activities for educational systems in the Islamic Republic of

Pakistan and abroad:

« AFAQ aims at developing curricula, textbooks, teacher guides and supplementary
readers for the educational institutions. The curriculum documents and textbooks
are developed keeping in view the guidelines of National Education Policies,
Ideological Foundations, Pedagogical Requirements and International Standards.

« AFAQ in collaboration with the training institutions offers long-term as well as short-
term teacher training programs which may be professional or subject-oriented.

« AFAQ has initiated a consultative series of school visits to provide guidance to them
on developing self-directed school systems.

« AFAQ contributes to quality-oriented endeavors of public and private sectors.

+ AFAQ has initiated a student assessment program.

» So far, AFAQ has developed school textbooks pre-primary to elementary level, after
benchmarking the international curricula. AFAQ is one of the largest training
organizations in Pakistan; since its impaction, it has trained more than 413,142
teachers in all districts of Pakistan. AFAQ monthly publishes of AFAQ Children
Encyclopediain three languages: Urdu, English and Arabic.

» To further augment its efforts, AFAQ is also jointly working with Punjab Education
Foundation, Punjab Textbook Board and AJK Textbook Board to strengthen public-
private- partnership in Pakistan.
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Vision

Mission _ |
Strengthening Education
for Change

AFAQ will mediate between the future and the present and will act as a forerunner in
shaping the destiny of the nation. In the name of Allah and to serve the cause of Islam
and Pakistan, AFAQ will contribute to holistic development of schools, teachers, and
pupils. Keeping in view the contextual framework and global standards, AFAQ will
generate educational resources, support services, and learning programs employing
all mediums in non-governmental settings.

AFAQ has overall 31 Offices in Pakistan
Year-wise AFAQ Office

Fiscal Years Offices
July 2018 to June 2019 33
July 2019 to June 2020 33
July 2020 to June 2021 31
July 2021 to June 2022 31
July 2022 to June 2023 31

Year-wise Number of AFAQ Offices in Pakistan

July 2018 to June 2019 July 2019 to June 2020 July 2020 to June 2021 July 2021 to June 2022 July 2022 to June 2023
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ure in presenting their 18* annual report together

; take
The Directors of our company Ph"“d by I S the your

Mdmkﬂufgr with the Audited Financial Statements
30* June, 2023.

AFAQ Head Office:

18, Block-A, Johar ToW™.  Financial results:

WMMMM mwmuﬂwmhﬂuwuﬂdm‘jmmmmmmmdn

+92-42-35166406 fallows:
Email: mai@alaq odu.pk ik
-!:.:l:;-n.hd-ﬂ-l i (Rupees)

mmﬂﬂ:—. Karuchi.

mmm-ﬂﬁn Revenne — net 2,526,693,293 2,198,800,617

- 42,598,086

43,889,167 ’

Labows Sales Office atagy  Other Income 8

sty i 7570580460 2,241,398,704

Out Fall Road, Lahore. Direct 1,727,823,678 1.329.1’85.';?0

Finance Costs 55,490,924 63,126,105
Ofices:

otk Kt 2440594127 1945335992

Hyderabsd, Sukdarr,

Mawabahah, Multan,

Bahawalpur, Lahore,

pos-erpry e Deficit/Surplus for the year 129,988,333 296,062,712

Islamabad, buzaiarabad,

Kashaniz, Abbottabad, ; % in its

Peshaw: aade,  APAQ reported its full year results for 2023, recording an increase of 12.81 |

mmm revenue as compared to the same period last year. This growth was achieved despite

Chitral, DL Khan, external challenges of high inflation and unpredictable dollar rates. Relentless focus on

mm ensuring product availability, product development initiatives supported by management
decisions, helped to offsct the headwinds mentioned above. This amazing

An 50 90013015 Certgfied Company | "A Company sot up wh 43 of Companien Ordinarce 1084 | wwwafaq.edu.pk

sccomplishment is just one step on our jouncy. Our ability to relentlessly search for
solutions to problems and find innovative ways to improve the world is the key to this

SUCCEss,

AFAQ complete educational solution provider, and our Purpose — to unlock the
educational attributes to enhance quality of education, today and for generations to come

— is embedded in everything we do. Despite the pandemic, we drove innovation to create
products that are right for students and positively contribute to develop lireracy rate in
Pakistan. We adapted quickly and worked diligently across the organization to help us
stand out from the competition.

A new series was added, RISING SUN for class preprimary in Selection portfolio of
books. We also going to introduce new series for other classes.
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We aim to continue driving category innovations that fulfill our students needs and
desires.

Directors Responsibility Statement:

Association for Academic Quality (AFAQ) is committed to maintain high standards

of corporate goverance without any exception. The Directors are pleased to state

that the Company is compliant with the provisions of the Code of Corporate
Governance as required by SECP. Statement of Compliance with Code of

Corporate Governance is as under.

The Directors confirm that:

a) The financial statements prepared by the management '.:'f the Company
present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flow and

changes in equity )
b) Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained
¢) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in
preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment
d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and
17 have been followed in the

the requirements of Companies Act, 20
preparation of the financial statements; and any departure thereof has been

adequately disclosed and explained
¢) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively

implemented and monitored
f) ‘There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern
Review of Activities and Future Development:

Rescarch and development continued this year also with some major achievements.
AFAQ has developed 17 Title for AJK Board competition for 6 to 8 and SNC based
Sun Series 78 Titles for 6 to 8 and 54 titles for 1 to 5, SNC based Igbal Series 48

Titles, newly developed Rising Sun Series 18 Titles for preprimary, Pushto language
02 Titles, SNC based Sun Series key books 53, 2210 lesson plans and 2480 work
sheets. This represents development of 217 Text books and 53 helping books and
2690 Support material things. During the year AFAQ obtained 214 NOCs for Text
books from different Boards.

The training department trained schools 2,785, teachers 34,178 and 4,523 principals
across the country during the report year thereby covering 158 topics and made
1,984 sessions related to school management, quality management, early childhood
Jearning, subject teaching, and classroom management etc.

The AFAQ Encyclopedia offers unique information on varous topics. It presents
exciting new information and leaming activities for children ages 7-13. AFAQ has
developed 1014 articles in English and Urdu languages till reporting period, which
are geared to various subjects and are organized into four topics per month,

Personalities, Countrics, Inventions and Animals. This encyclopedia instills a




future..

look-it-up habit and captures the imagination of young children with engaging
photography, artwork, and information on the topics they love. With articles by
scholars from around the world, this set tkes an interdisciplinary look at the

instirutions and practices of socicties throughout history,

AFAQ Head Office
18, Block-A. Johar Town,  AFA(Q Children's Literature Department (CLD) is committed to creadng interesting,
s o ilds useful literature for children which is compatble with their curricular activities. The
+9242-35171090-91 mmwmwmmmﬁmmﬁmm
+T2ALIS66406 Math Geni 24 ia readers for Mindfulness of children
i Genius Magazine Encyclopedia
Smnchi Bules Qiffen: Principal Risk & Uncertainty:
L-1-C, Block 21, Federal-B )
Industrial Area, Karachi " Incruuininpm:nudu:mﬁﬁnghﬂl&onmdﬁkdrﬁuﬂluﬂnﬂmmnf
Phe +92-71-36871050-51 die
23364858016 cupency
Email: sales®@afaq edu.pk . Macro-economic uncertainties which might affect consumer demand
e Market disrupton due to political uncerminty in the wake of upcoming
RABAS NS ONIRS S geoeral elections.
:le:’-q. e A sudden closure of educational institution due to any pandemic situation
Shomk, will cause a drop in sales.
Chut Fall Rosd, Lahore.
T +92-4237150M5-50
+5336-E000 Future Outlook:
Email: publishingataq edu pk
Cither Offices: mwm.mugmm&hmmwqu
Quetta, Karachi, mtﬁ:ﬁnﬁmhnpnru,hwwu:hmplmhhﬂlq.pmlmmﬂwhul
Hyderabad, Sukduz, currency, and an increase in taxes. Despite all the challenges, the Company remains
""!"“I .m” mmuumdtnungihltpmrﬂ:mdmmmqym, capitalizing on highly committed
Gujranwals, workforce supported by continuous initiatives for operational excellence.
Sialkot, Faisalabad, Gujrat,
"“"""'HI:IIIH < By the order of Board of Directors
Peshawar, Gllgit, Skardu,
Mardan, Chaldars, Swat,
Chitral, D.L Khan,
Sargodha, Sahiwal, <
Ravalpindl.
= hrl——guqﬂ,‘"
Representative of BOD Chief Executive Officer

An IS0 50012015 Certified Company | A Company wet s e €3 of Companien Ordinasce 1987 | www.afng edu pk
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Research

At AFAQ, our Research Division is comprised of dedicated professionals who
understand that research into the appropriation, content and production of educational
media in its socio-cultural contexts is an ongoing process. Our researchers have
successfully developed many new comprehensive textbook series and dynamic
support materials which are aligned with the Single National Curriculum (SNC) to
ensure young learners expand their knowledge base, are equipped with the latest
information and are introduced to new innovative ideas. Our R&D team has developed
over 1000 publications and is at the forefront of cutting-edge educational research that
will keep AFAQ ahead of the rest. To fulfill the demand of the era, AFAQ has developed
the following series:

SUN Series and Iqgbal Series
(Grades 6-8)

The Middle School Books of Pakistan's Single National Curriculum (SNC) represent a
pivotal initiative aimed at harmonizing educational standards across the country for
grades 6to 8.

These books are meticulously designed to provide a balanced and inclusive education,
ensuring that every student, regardless of their socio-economic background, receives
high-quality learning opportunities.

The curriculum integrates modern pedagogical techniques, focusing on critical
thinking, creativity, and problem-solving skills, essential for the holistic development
of students.

Subjects such as Mathematics, Science, Social Studies, and Languages are tailored to
reflect both national values and global perspectives, fostering a sense of national
identity while preparing students for the challenges of a globalized world.

Additionally, the Single National Curriculum (SNC) promotes moral and ethical
education, aiming to cultivate responsible and informed citizens. By standardizing the
curriculum, Pakistan aims to bridge educational disparities and uplift the overall
quality of education, setting a strong foundation for future academic and professional
success.
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Visuals of SNC Sun Series and Igbal Series
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Training

For the 2022-2023 period, AFAQ provided its training services directly to schools,
delivering a significant impact nationwide. The AFAQ Training team, consisting of highly
committed, vastly experienced, and well-trained Teacher Educators, dedicated
themselves to improving teaching standards through effective training programs. To
further enhance the Teacher Training Program, the AFAQ Training Division enlisted the
expertise of notable and well-reputed educationists and resource personnel.

During this year, the AFAQ Training Division successfully trained more than 27,731
teachers and 2,468 principals in 3,590 schools nationwide. These efforts were
supported by comprehensive training programs designed to enhance the skills of
teachers and school management, ranging from one-day certification courses to 15-
day sessions and diploma programs.

SATIONAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT Total 2,2959

Primary Leve

AFAQ's training services continued to be highly regarded in both the private and public
sectors. A notable achievement was the signing of a training agreement between the
different Government/Private sectors and AFAQ, marking significant recognition in the
public sector.

Principal Training

The main objective of Principal Convention (PC) is to provide latest management and
administrative techniques to the principals and management staff of schools
nationwide. The PCs conducted over the year have equipped the principals and
management staff with the much needed tools and techniques to run their institutions
more productively with highest standards of quality. The PCs conducted in the year
2022-2023 are detailed hereunder:
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Zone Schools Participants

Mardan 830 832
Islamabad 399 440
Sialkot 540 545
Hyderabad 155 161
Mirpur Khas 67 70

Karachi C& W 618 647
Karachi Malir 520 540
Faisalabad 28 28

Abbottabad 355 365
Lahore 39 41

Karachi East 830 784
Mirpur 424 426
Muzaffarabad 415 428

Training Courses

AFAQ Training Division also conducts 1-day to 3-day training workshops in session-
based training models. There are 120+ training topics to be selected from. Principals
and teachers participate in these courses to improve their skills and learn the latest
tools and techniques being used in the field. The Certificate Courses conducted in the
year 2022-2023 are detailed hereunder:

No. of No. of No. of No. of Participants No. of

Fiscal Year Training Topics s f L. s h' I
e Taught essions Principals Teachers choo

2022-23 1553 115 1738 2468 15731 3590

@ RN




Training Projects 2022-23

Training Projects of Year 2022-23:

Major Projects:
Project 1= SCHOOL LEADERSHIP gﬁ%
DEVELOPMENT DEVELOPMENT

e e it of
D L e | 1
[S——_—rT

For the School Heads of GMS, APS, Golden Arrows &
F.C Schools From Merged Districts of KPK.

(1) Project Objective: Merged Areas Education
Foundation (MAEF) has a vision of providing access to
enabling education through strengthening public
educational delivery system and public-private partnership with focus on the
marginalized and the disadvantaged students. To pursue this vision, MAEF keeps
arranging professional development activities for its team members. In this
connection, MAEF decided to get the school heads of GMS, APS, Golden Arrows & F.C
trained by AFAQ.

(2) Targeted Beneficiaries: Twenty (20) school heads (Male: 16, Female: 04) from
seven (7) districts of KP benefited from this activity based and experiential learning
program.

District-wise Participation

I i
] ]
I I | | |
B Wt
'

(3) Area of implementation: School Heads
KPK.

(4) Project Donor: MAEF

Farliipanta

o
-

(5) Project Need Assessment: The MAEF
project need assessment was conducted and
submitted to MAEF head office with all record. o—

Gersm  Wahmand Owbes South Tark

LD WalkaLan

(6) Geographic Focus: This project was
conducted for different 7 districts of KPK. AFAQ provides school heads: School
leadership development training to male and female of KPK.

(7) Project Timeline: 4 Days program with 31 credit hours.

(8) Description of major activities of the Project: A 4-day training program with
31 credit hours was arranged. At the end of each session, the participants were asked
to fill up the evaluation forms especially designed to evaluate training's usefulness and
relevance to their job. The participants’ response to different questions shows that the
courses were quite helpful for their job.
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Project Graphical Report

CP's Demographics
CP’'s Gender Proportion

20 participants joined this training program from all over KP. Out of which 4 participants
were male and 16 were females.

CP'S GENDER PROPORTION
B Male HFemale

Cp’s Geographical Participation

The participants joined this training program from the following districts of NMDs.

District-wise Participation

4.5
4
3.5
82 3
=
E 2.5
¥
c 2
& 15
1
0.5
0
Bajaur Kurram Mohmand Khyber South Tan North
Waziristan Waziristan

Districts




3 Leaders’ Club

AFAQ Leaders' Club provides an opportunity to students to learn life skills by engaging
in activities such as, sports, debates, arts competitions, science competitions, camping
and training workshops in schools and outside the schools.

3.1 AFAQ Leaders Club

Launched in 2009, aimed at character education for children and youth to make them
future leaders.

Summary of 2022-23 Activities
3.2 and Achievements

« Summary of 2023 Activities and Achievements

- Total Activities: 5 major events and competitions

« Participants: Over 1,500 students and alumni

- Participant Demographics:
- Cities Represented: Participants from 38 cities

- Key Events:
+ Justujoo Youth Leadership Camp: 43 participants from 18 universities
« Summer Camp: 53 students from 15 cities
+ Seeratun Nabi Online Competitions: 150 participants, 15 winners
- Best Teacher and Student Award: 1,090 participants from 6 cities
« Alumni Reunion and Meetups: 159 alumni from 4 cities

- Impact:
« Enhanced leadership skills and character development
« Strengthened community and alumni network
» Positive feedback and high participant satisfaction

3.3 Summary of 2022-23

5 major events and competitions
Over 1500 students Participants Engaged

Participants from over 38 Cities




Justujoo Youth Leadership Camp
3-4 2022-23

Location: Ziarat, Balochistan

In collaboration with International
Islamic University Islamabad.

Duration: 5 days.
43 participants
18 universities

23 cities

Location: Ziarat, Balochistan. o
Summar 18

Duration: 3 days umunl’“‘
53 Participants " i ":; Jandne
From Class 8, 9, and 10. :

15 Cities

3.6 >022-23

Competitions: Arts, Skit, Essay
Writing, Naat.

150 participants
38 cities

15 winners

16
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Counseling & Career
Guidance

Career counseling is a scientific and systematic process which helps
students to discover their personality traits, intelligence, capabilities
and interests. Career counseling ensures that a student chooses the
career that suit them best, a career that is the beginning of a bright
future for them and an assurance to their success in practical life.

I;sychometric

Test Booklet

Five-Stage Solution To Your Career
Planning and Growth

Self-Exploration

In the first stage, students are given intelligence tests to evaluate their personality,
intelligence and interests. A comprehensive report prepared on the basis of these tests
identifies the strengths and weaknesses in the personality of an individual and
suggests ways of improvement. This report also proposes careers compatible with the
intelligence and personality of an individual.

Career - Exploration

In the second stage, students are provided with detailed knowledge of careers all over
the world, especially in Pakistan so that they could make the best possible decision
about their future.

Career Planning and Decision Making

In the third stage, students are trained to choose a career that is ideally suited to their
personality and capabilities, and then make a detailed plan to pursue that career.
Search for an Educational Institute and Job

Students are briefed about degrees and courses being offered by leading educational
institutes, and taught various job-acquiring skills.

Training Sessions

These sessions aim at personal grooming of students and improving their skills.




AFAQ Counseling and Career Guidance,
An Assurance to Your Bright Future!

Students often find it difficult to select the disciplines and careers that
match their personality, intelligence and interests. AFAQ Counseling and
Career Guidance Department has designed a comprehensive and up-to-
date program that caters for this basic educational and economic
needs of the youth. Prepared by top class professionals, AFAQ
Counseling and Career Guidance assures an individual of success in life
and lays the foundation of a bright and prosperous Pakistan.

CCG Services

| CCG Psychometric Tests (Latest Version) (Personality, El, Verbal & Non-verbal, Career Inventory, Core Values)l

Who Does It Benefit?

Students

+ Students are provided with clear guidance on careers that best suit their
personality, intelligence and interests.

« It makes the students aware of their own self, thus enabling them to make best use
of their capabilities.

« As uncertainty over the choice of a career ends, students achieve the peace of mind
and march toward economic stability.

Parents and Teachers

« Parents can now sigh with relief because AFAQ Counseling and Career Guidance is
extremely useful for selecting the most appropriate disciplines and careers for their
children.

« Once students have made the right choices about their careers, teachers feel their
jobis already half done.

Schools

« Top-performing students lead to image-building of their schools.

« AFAQ Counseling and Career Guidance produces best results in school and board
examinations. It also leads to a drastic reduction in the number of failed students.

« Ithelpsalotinachieving educational targets of schools and improving their overall

performance. I _
Salient Features -l
Society - Comprehensive o = 1/
. Thereis a sharp decline in unemployment ;ralnlng prolgrams P“_] HFEN
with an increase in the skilled and or per.sona Test Booklet
competent workforce. grooming
« Complete

« A psychologically sound, financially
stable and socially healthy society is the
outcome of AFAQ Counseling and Career
Guidance.

confidentiality for all
psychological tests
and reports

R




Encyclopedia Program

The AFAQ Encyclopedia offers unique information on various topics. It presents

exciting new information and learning activities for children from 7-13 years of age.

This encyclopedia instills a look-it-up habit and captures the imagination of young

children with engaging photography, artwork, and information on the topics they love.

With articles by scholars from around the world, this set takes an interdisciplinary look

at the institutions and practices of societies throughout history. Articles are geared to

various subjects and are organized into four topics per month: personalities, countries,
inventions and animals.

« AFAQ Encyclopedia is the perfect tool for homework assignments, building research
skills, and making learning fun for children. This encyclopedia is first of its kind. This
new encyclopedia presents the social, cultural and political history of the world from
antiquity to the present day. AFAQ Encyclopedia is the first to document and
interpret every work, major and minor, that has played a role in the history of the
world. It is by no means a routine mechanical exercise in fact-finding. The creative
elementis especially focused on while writing this encyclopedia.

Five-Stage Solution To Your Career
Planning and Growth

Animals
This topic not only provides an introduction to and interesting habits of animals but also
provides information on how we can learn from them.

Islamic Countries
This topic not only covers introduction and history of the Muslim countries but also
reflects their positive values and traditions.

Inventions
This topic throws light on all types of inventions in a novel and captivating style. It also
describes the role of ancient inventions in modern scientific advancement.

Personalities
This topic describes the life of those persons who left eternal imprints on the Muslim
nation with their unmatchable knowledge and glorious personalities.




Visuals of AFAQ Encyclopedia
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UH Hassan Naeem & Co.
Chartered Accountarnts
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Association for Academic Quality
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

L Opinion

- We have audited the annexed financial statements of Association for Academic Quality (“the
[_ Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the
statement of income and expenditure, the statement of changes in funds, the statement of cash
i flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, the statement of income and expenditure, other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in funds and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the surplus, the changes in fund and its
- cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
L applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered |
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
J_ appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

| Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
1 information included in the annual report for the year ended June 30, 2023, but does not include
= the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

| Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance mnduﬁimtl‘my{
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UH! ’Hassan Naeem & Co.
Chorlered Accountants

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of intemwz
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Chartered Accountants

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
] continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o r—
L]

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

o p—

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

I’Il-\—.-l

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

—

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of income and expenditure, the
statement of changes in funds and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

=

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company's business; and

—

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of

y
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Other Matter

The financial statements of Assodiation for Academic Quality for the year ended June 30, 2022,
were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
September 28, 2022.

The engagement partner on audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Ibne
Hassan.

Date: November 23, 2023 a acem &
Place: Lahore / Chartered Accountants
UDIN: AR202310300m53PYOQaf




ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY
(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
| STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
- AS AT JUNE 30, 2023
\ MNote 2023 2022
ASSETS Rupees Rupees
. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
! Property, plant and equipment 5 218,518,481 199,745,133
“  Intngible assets 6 9,879,962 :
Long term deposits 7 23,287,677 14,018,942
1 251,686,120 213,764,075
; CURRENT ASSETS
Stock in trade 8 782,180,420 400,758,923
] Right of return assets g 51,295,351 42,765,535
. Trade debis 10 302,851,469 277,152,029
Short term advances 1" 73,707,539 74,710,321
L Current portion of long term deposits - 2,756,075
Prepayments and other receivables 12 19,379,565 3,008,530
_ Profit accrued 4,725 2,332,081
l Tax refunds due from Government 13 8,999,508 8,999,508
Cash and cash equivalent 14 13,967,504 161,193,970
1,252,386,081 073,676,973
l TOTAL ASSETS 1,504,072,201 187,441,048
FUND AND LIABILITIES
| FUND AND RESERVE
“~  Genenal fund 22,845,926 22 845926
_ Accumulated fund 704,207,187 574,218,855
j 727,053,113 597,064,781
" NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred liability - Gratuity 15 123,843 123,843
L Advances from employees against vehicles 18 23,790,413 24,423 460
Lease liabilities 17 115,387 474 99,859,114
139,501,730 124,406,417
[ CURRENT LIABILITIES
~  Trade creditors, accrued and other habilities 18 325,739,530 242,196,243
Contract liabilities 19 129,359,728 69,040,436
| Refund liability 20 142,993,195 114,054,748
' Current partion of lease habilines 17 39,424,904 40678423
637,517,357 465,969,850
‘uL CONTINGENCIES & COMMITMENTS 21
TOTAL FUND AND LIABILITIES __ 1,504,072,201 1,187,441,048
— —

| The annexed notes from 1 1o 35 form an integral part of these financial gatements.

Moy, . |

£ e .

Chief Executive Officer Director




ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers - net
Other income

Diirect cost
Administrative and general expenses
Marketing and distribution expenses

Finance cost

Surplus of income over expenditure before taxation
Taxation

Surplus of income over expenditure after taxation

MNote

22
23

24
25
26
27

28

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
2,526,693,293 2,198,800,617
43,889,167 42,598,086
2,570,582 460 2,241,398,704
1,727,823,678 1,329,786,760
169,663,496 174,662,004
487,616,029 377,761,123
55,490,924 63,126,105
2,440,594,127 1,945,335,992
129,988,333 296,062,712
129,988,333 296,062,712

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Mt e

Chief Executive Officer

Diirector
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Balance as at July 01, 2021
Surplus of income over expenditure after taxation
Balance as at June 30, 2022

Surplus of income over expenditure after taxation

Balance as at June 30, 2023

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial stateme

[ﬂ E’—_)LJW‘—-—‘

Chief Executive Officer

General Accumulated
I fund Total
(Rupees)

22,845,926 278,156,143 301,002,069
= 206,062,712 296,062,712

22,845,926 574,218,855 597,064,781
- 129,988,333 129,988,333

22,845,926 704,207,187 727,053,113

ﬁ e —
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L ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY
(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Mote 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
L CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus of income over expenditure before taxation 129,988,333 296,062,712
)
L Adjustment of non- cash ftems:
Deprecianon - owned asseis L1 10,600,024 9,402,511
| Deprecianon - cight of use assets 22 52,033,718 45,851,947
| Amortization 6 1,588,260 :
[ Property, plant & equipment disposed off 12,301,630 189,878
Impairment - 2,356,023
! Finance cost 27 55,490,924 63,126,105
r Allowance for expected credit loss 10.3 17,145,080 -
Gain on disposal of lease liability 23 (21,448,058) 21,702,503
]_ Reversal of expected credir loss 10.3 - (24,379,986)
Profit on bank accounts 23 {2,040,032) (3,281,564)
|| Cash generated before working capital changes 255,659,878 411,030,130
- Effect on cash flow due 1o working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
| Stock in trade (381,421,496) 36,890,832
¥ Right of return assets (8,529,816) (8,512,659)
Trade debis (42,844,519) (94,143,189)
I| Short term ndvances 1,002,783 (26,853,765)
- Prepayments and other receivables (16,371,035) (2,622.543)|
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilitics:
!' Trade and other payables 83,543,287 (120,401.910)
s Contract liabilities 60,319,292 (6,318,756)
Refund linbility 28,938,447 18,845 409
1 (275,363,057) (203,116,562)
> Cash (used in)/generated from operations (19,703,180) 207,913,548
H Profit received 4367388 963,280
| Finarice costs (31,736,930) (42,742,948
Advances received from employees against vehicles (633,047) 1,267 466
I (28,002,589) (40,512,202)
Met cash {used in)/generated from operating activities (47,705,769) 167 401,346
\ CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
| Addition in property, plant and equipment 5 (19,090,016) (10,223 360)
Addition intangible (11,468,222) :
| Long term deposits (6,512,660) (384,501)

Net cash used in investing activitics / (37,070,898) (10,607,861)
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

{A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

MNaote 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lease rentals paid 17 (62,449,800) (60,255,786)
Net cash used in financing activities (62,449,800) (60,255,786)
Net (decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalents (147,226,466) 96,537,699
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 161,193,970 64,656,271
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14 13,967,504 161,193,970

Th:mnutdnumfmmlmﬁformminl:gnlpannfﬂtlcﬁn:m:i:]nn)z
.ﬁ‘ L’D Uc-f( :

Chief Executive O fficer Director
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1
L1

Company and general information

The Association for Academic Cuality (AFACQ) (hercinafier the Company) is & public company limited by guarantee and not
having share capital and & incorporated in Pakistan under the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984
(eepealed with the ensctment of the Companies Act, 2017) on 6th February, 2006 while it started its operations with effec
from lat Apeil, 2006, The Company has obeined Eicense under section 42 of the Ordinance. The prncipal acavity of the
Company i development of syllabus content, sale of books snd conducting teacher training sessions nationwide @ improve
stundards of teaching. The registered office of the Company i located at 18-A Johar Town Lahore.

Its poncipal activities are promoting  high quality education in Pakistan and printing of informative school rext books in
sccordance with the rules and regulations of the "Natonal cumculum® and o provide training to the teachers all over
Pakistan.

The Company has different bousiness units located m diffecent cities of Pakisan. Location of all busimess units is given below:

[ Business Units Location and Address |
Head Office 18-A, Johar Town Lahore
Lahore Canal View Office House # 626 Block ) Canal View Housing Society Multan

Karachi Sales Office
Lahore Sales Office

Quetta Regional Office
Sukkur Regional Office

Gujranwala Regional Office

Abbattabad Regional Office
Malakand Regional Office

Karachi Malir Ciffice

Bahawalpur regional Office
Islarmabad Regional Office

Peshawar Regional Ovffice

Swat Zonal Office
Multan Regional Office

Gilgir Regional Office

3-1-Khan Office
Crugrat Orfice

Slkot Office
Fuizalabad Regional Office

Sahrwal office
Hydembad regional office

2

Road Lahore

L-1-C.Block 21 Fedenl B Industrial Area

Opp Shell Petrol Pump Corporation Chowk Out Fall Road
Lahare

Banglow-3 Hilal Residency near Saleem Complex CQuetta
Opp. PAS Office, Al-Azeem M, Shalimar Road, Suldour

Sukh Chan Villas Kashmir Road, House #1, Fiest Floar

Lalarar Colony Mohalls Umer Faroog Supply Abbotmbad

Cipp Timber Mikr Bilal Town Amirsbad Chakdars Dist. Dar

Lower

Pl MNo2l Row-F Block-4 Sidi Jamaar  Cooperanve

Housing Society, Karachi-Malir

6 £ Trust Colony near Jamia Maspd Bahawalpur

Apmar Meazil 11 P Rosd IfP Smdium Road Jenction

lalamabad

MNear Sadaar CHG Smoon, Qamardin Garn overhead brdge,

Ring Road, Peshawir

First Mooe Sultan Tower Makan Bagh Mingom Sear

St # 1 near Toyoes Show Room Boson Road Bypass Chowk

Multan

Mear Radio Pakistan Zalfigar Abad Pressing House Jutial

Gl

WENSAM Housing Scheme, Multan Road Dera lsmail
KFC, Mear the Spirit School, Abdullah Campus,

GT Road, Tehstl Khanan, District Gujrat

House # 136, Auvrangzeb Road, Mohallsh Model Town,

Sialkot

T18-C Batala Colony near Shehryar Horel Gates Chowk

Saryana Road Faisalabad.

183-A Officers Colony Farid Town Sahivwal

Bungalow # A-1/B Fiet Floor Block E opp To

Mohammedi Hospital Along with Smart College Bham
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UF UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1

| Busincss Units | Location and Address |

Hyderabad Sale office Bungalow # E/87T-B Ground Floor Bloe E Unit #é
Latifabad Hyderabad

AFAQ Book Shop Lahowe 110 Chatterjes Road Fagir Plaza Shop # 32 Ground Floar
Updu Bazas Lahewe.

Sargodha Office Office # F-1 Finst Floor Qureshi Arcade, Main Khushab
Rosd Sargodha.

Muzaffarabad Office House MoD-113, Upper (lusar Housing  Scheme,
Muzaffarabad (AJK)

Mardun Office Errum Colony near Hag 5t Nowshera Road, Mardan.

Skandu Office Hassan Colosy Pine near by God Sttion, Clifton Pull
Skardu

Diera Ghazi Khan Office Himme Mo36, Block A-3, Phase 5, DGE

Afaq Karachi Ceneral Office House Mo B-1, Block-1, Morth Mazimabad, Karschi

Afag Karachi South Office Plot No.E-9,Block-10, Gulshan-e-Igbal N.LP.A Kacachi

Afag Ware Houwses, Saggran Lahaore Malik Farm House Foad, Sapgian Bypass Road, Mot Main
Sukh Tehsl & [istnce, Lahore

Afag-Mirpue (A]K) Office House Mo.08, Sector B4, Mirpar Ciry, ACK

Afag New Warchouse, Bund Road, Lahore Siddiqui Street, Opposite FTCL Exchange Bund Road,
Lahore

Afag Multan Road Office, Lahore Tarjaman ul Cursn (Al-Iblagh Trast) Bulding, Firsa Floos,

Mear Munsoom Hospinl, Multan Road, Lahaore
Basis Of Preparation
Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accondance with the accounting and reponing standands as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and repartng standards apphicable in Pakostan comprise of
Imternational Finsncial Reporang Standards (IFRS Sandands) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASE) as
notified under the Companies Act, 217, and

Accounting standand for Mot for Profit Organizations (Accounting standards for NPOs) bsued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as notified under the provisions of the Compandes Act, 201T;

Islamic financial sccounnng standard [FAS 2 (Accounting standards for ijarah) wsued by Instiute of Chastered Accountans of
Pakistan (ICA) under S R.0O; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

Where provisions of and dicectives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the 1TRS or the Accounting Standared for
MPOs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2007 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the histonical cost convention unless othervase stted.
Functional and presentation cusrency

‘These finandial statements are presented i Pak Rupee, which i the Company's functional curcency. Figures have been rounded
off o the nearest Pak Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standasds, as applicable in Pakisran,
requires mansgernent o make judgments, estimates and assumptions thar affect the appbication of sccounting policies and
reported amounts of azsees and labilites, mcome and expenses. Uncertainty about these assumprions and estrmates could resule
i outcomes that resquire 3 marenal adjustment to the curying smount of assets or Habibities in future penods.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histodcal expedence and vadous other factors that ane bebieved o be
reasonable under the crcumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgment about carrying value of assets and
kabalities that are not ceadidy svailable from other sources. Actual results, however may differ from these estimates.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

4.1

411

43
431

The estirmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 10 accounting estimates are recognied
in the penod in which estimates are revised if the revision affecs only thar penod, or i the penod of the revision and fature
peniods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Judgments made by the management in the spplication of
accounting and reporting stndards, a5 applicable in Pakistan that have smgnificant cffect on the financil saements and
estimates with a significant risk of matcral sdjustment in the nest year are documnented in the following accounting policies and
notes, and relate pramarily foc

MNote
1) Determination of useful lives, resicual values of operating fxed assets 4.4
b)) Refund habdiy i1
) Right of retum assct 11

Significant Accounting Policles

The aceountmg pobcies sdopted in the prepamtion of these financial statements are consivient with those of the previous
financial year except as described below:

Standands, interpretation and amendments o approved accounting standards which became effective during the
year

The following standards, amendinents and interpeetations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2023, These standands,

amendments and interpretations are sither not relevant 10 the Company's opemtons or wre not expected o have symificant
unpact on the Company's fnancul statements other than certan addonal daclosures.

Amendments to [FRS 3 "Bustness Combinations’ - Reference to the conceprual framewark

Amendmenta to [AS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to [AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Lisbilities and Contmpent Assets’ - Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfillng 2
COniract

Annual Improvements (o IFRS Standacds 2018-2020 Cycle (related to IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and 1AS 41)

Standards, interpretation and amendments to accounting and reporting standards which are not relevant and not yet
effective

The following standacds, smendments and interpretanons are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or afier the
date mentioned against cach of them. These standards, mierpretations and the smendments are cither not relevant o the

Company's opertions or are not expected o have significant impact on the Company's financial smtements other than certin
sddinonal disclosures.

Effective date
(accounting period beginning on or after)

Classification of Liabilities as Current o Mon-Current (Amendiments to [AS 1) 1-Jan-24
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Finandal Satements’ - Disclosure of accoiumting policies 1-Jan-23
Amendments 1o IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Clanges m Accountng Estmates and Erron' - Definiton of 1-Jan-23
ACTUUIIENE cAmaTes

Amendmenta to"LAS 12 Income Taxes' - defeered tax related (o wssets and lnbilities ansing from 3 single 1-Jan-23
trasseac o,

Amendments to [AS 12" Income taxes” - Intemational Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules 1-Jan-23
Mon-Current Lisbilities wath Covenant (Amendments 1 1AS 1) 1-Jan-24
Supplicr Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and [FRS T) 1-Jan-24
Lease Liabality in 3 Sabe snd Lesscback (Amendments o [FRS 16) 1-Jan-24

Cither than the aforesasd amendments, LASH has also issued the following standasds which have not been adopted locally by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakastan:

IFRS 1 = Fimst Time Adopton of Internatonal Financial Repoeting Standard
IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

Property, plant and equipment

Owned Assets

Property and equpment sre sated an cost Jess sccumubsted deprecianon and sccamulated impatrment loss, if any, except for
freehold land which is stated at cost.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

132

45

Depreciation on cwned property and cquipment is charged on reducing balance method at the mtes sated in Note 5.
Depreciation on additons 10 property and equipment i charged from the month in which an asset is sequired or capitalized
and no depreciation 18 charged in the month of disposal.

Subsequent costs are inchuded in the asser's carrying amount or recognized as & separale asset, a8 approprate, only when it is
probable thar furure economic benefits associated with the tem will fow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
meagured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to income and expendinure account during the yeir in
whach they ane incurrcd.

An item of propesty and equipment is desecognized upon disposal or when no fiuture coonomic benefits are expected from i
use of disposal Any gain or loss ansing on derceognition of the ssact (calculated 20 the diffesence between the net disposal
proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) 1 included in the income and expenditure sccount in the year the asct is

derecogrized.

The Company reviews the weful lives of property and equipment on cegubar basis. Any change in estimates in futuse years

might affect the carrying amounts of the reapective itema of property and equipment with 3 coresponding effect on the
a4 ad ool

Right-of-use asscts

The Company recognizes nght-of-use sssets ot the commencement date of the leuse (e, the date the undedying gaset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are messured ar cost, less any sccumulated deprecianon and impaiement losses, and
adpsted for sny remeasusement of lease labiites. The cost of nght-of-use assets mcludes the amount of lease habalities
recognized, inital direct costs incurred, and Jease payments made st or before the commencement date less any lease incennves
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease tesm and the estimared useful
bives of the assers.

If anership of the leased asset transfess to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of o
purchase option, deprecianon is caboulsted wsang the cstimated useful Bfe of the asser

Intangible assers

An intangible aesct i recojmived if it 1s probable that future economic benefits that ace attnbutable 1o the asset wall Bow o the
company and that the cost of such an asset can also be measured relably, Intangible assets arc smted 4t cost less accumulated
smortizaton and sny identified impairment loss.

Amortization is charged 1o meome on the straight line basis so as (o wiite off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life.
Amostizagion on addinons is charged from the month in which an asset 15 acquirsd o capitalized while no smortizanon i
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. Amontization is being chagged an speaficd in Mot 6.

The Company sssesses at each repartng date whether there s any indication that mtangible assets may be mpaired. [f such

mdication exists, the carrying amowunt of such assets are reviewed o asses whether they are mecorded in exeess of their
recoverable amount.

Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down o their reeoverable amounts and the
resulting impaisment s recognized in mcome. The recoverable amount 18 the higher of an asser's fair valus less cost o sell and
value in use. Where an impatemient boss b8 recognized, the amormzanon chagge 39 adjusted m the futwe penods 1o allocate the
asscl’s revised carrying amount over its estimated uschul Life.

Leases

The Company ssseascs at contract inception whether & contract is, or contains, a lease that is, if the contract conveys the aght o
control the use of an dennfied asset for & period of time in exchange for consideration.

Compragny as lessee

The Company applies 3 single recognition and measurement approach for all keases, except for shorr-teem leases and leases of
lorw-value assets. The Company recognizes lease lnbilities to make lease payments and dght-of-use sssets representing the nght
to use the undedying assets.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

4.5.1

4.6

4.7

48

4.10

4an

Lease liabilitics - Rented premises

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recopnizes lease labiliies messured at the present value of lease
payments 10 be made over the lease rerm. The bease payments mclude fived payments (inchuding in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivabile, vanable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and unounits expected o be paid
under residual valse puaranioes, The lease paymenis also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably cestain to be
exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising
the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend o0 an index or 3 rate are recognized as expenses (unbess
they are incurred to produce mventories) in the pesod in which the event or condition that triggess the payment occurs.

In caleulating the present value of lexse payments, the Company uscs its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date where the intevest rate anplicit i the lease is not readily determinable. Afier the commencement date, the unount of lease
liabilities is increased to eeflect the sceretion of mnterest and roduced for the lease payments made. In addinon, the camying
smount of lease labilifes is remessured if there is 3 modification, & change in the lease term, & change m the lease payments
(e, changes 1o futuze payments resulting from a change in an index of rte weod to determine such lease payments) or 3 change
in the assessment of an option o purchase the undedying ssser.

Siock in trade

Ioventores are stated at kower of cost and net resbzalibe value. Cost comprises direct matenials, and where apphicable direct ibor
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventorics to their present locaton and condition. Cost of
finished good is caloulated using "Weighted Average” basis. The mw material inventory hias been assessed uning the First In,
First Owt (FIFO) methed for valuation. Mot realizable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimates] costs of
completion and costs 1o be incurred in marketing, selling and distnbution.

Trade and other reccivables

A recetvable is recognized if an smowunt of consideration that is unconditional is due from the customer (i.e, only the passage of
time is requiced before payment of the consideranon is due).

Employee benefits
Deefined benefit plan

The Company uperated unfunded gransty scheme foe all its permanent employees who have complered the manmmum qualifying
period of service as defined under the respective scheme. Provisons were made annually to cover the obligations under the
schemes on the basia of internal assessment of the management based on the assumptions thar such benefits were payable 1o all
employees at the end of kaancal year. The Company discontinued the scheme wath effect from 1 July 2015 and the benefits af
pratuiry shall be paid only w tose emplopees who were eligible a1 discontinuation dare.

Defined contribution plan

The Company operstes 8 recognieed provident fund for all i regular employees. Equal monthly contabutions are made o the
fund both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of the basic saliry, Obligason for contrbutions o defined
conmbution plan i recogmized a8 an expense m the meome and expenditure account as and when incursed.

Trade and other paysbles

Lushilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carned at cont which i the fsir value of the considerstion to be paid in
the furure for the goods and [ or services received, whether or not billed 1o the Company. Exchange gams and loases ariing oo
translation in respect of labilities in foreign curtency are added to the carryemy emount of the respective labilities.

Provisions

Provasions are recognized i the statement of finsncisl position when the Company has a begal o constroctive oblgation as
result of past event, and it is probable thar owflow of economic benefits will be required 1w sentle the obligaton. However,
provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect cusrent best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Satisfaction of performance obligations

The Company is requiced to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance obligations are
satisfied over time of 8t & point in tme in onler to determine the appropriste method for recognizimg, revenue, The Company
has sssessed that bused on the contracts d into with « ra and the provisons of rdevant bows and regulations, the
Company recognizes revenue ot point in
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Transfer of control in contracts with customers

In cases where the Company determines that performance obligations are satinficd a1 4 point i time, revenue is recogrized
when control over the asscts is transfesred fo the customer or benefits of the services being provided is received and consumed
by the customer.

Sale of books

The Company enters fito contracts for sale of books and revenue is recogaized at the point in tme when control of the asset is
tranaferred to the customer (e, on disparch of the books), performance obiliation is met a8 dispatch, therefore, the revenue is
recognized at the point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied.

Rendering of services

Revenue from training 2nd consultancy meame is recognized when the training or consultancy is delivered, it is probable the
economic benefie will flow o the company and amount of sevenue can be messured reliably.

There are no pedformance obligations where the condinons for recognition of revenue over time aze samnsficd.
Determination of transaction prices

The Company is requared to determine the transacton price o respect of cach of its contracts with customers. In determining
the transaction price for the sale of books, the Company considers the effects of vanable consideration, the existence of
significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the eustomer (if any)

Variable consideration
If the conmderation m & contract includes a vanable amount, the Company estanates the amont of consideration to which it
will be entitled in exchange fior transfesting the goods to the customer. Some contracts provide customens with a night of renam.

The aghts of retum give fse to vamable consideration. The Company does not gpve volume rchates any discounts given to
customens are accounted for at the ome of sabe,

Right of retum

The Company gives the customers an option 1o retum unsold product The Company uses the cxpecied value method o
estimate the poods that will not be rerumed because this method best predicts the amowst of vanable consideration 1o which
the Company will be entitled. The requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining cxtimates of variable consideration are also applicd
m onder 10 determing the smount of vamable consideration that can be inchded in the irmnsscton poce. For goods that are
expected 1o be retumed, instead of revenuve, the Company recognizes o refund lability. A nght of rctum asser (and
corresponding adjustment o cost of sales) i also recognized for the nght 1o recover products from a customer.

Contract halances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's rght 1o an smount of consideration that is unconditional {Le. only the passage of Gme is
required before payment of the consideration is duc). Refer to accounting policies of Gnancial assets in Financial Instruments -
Inital tecognition and subsequent measurament.

Contract Habilities

A contract Bability i the obligation to transfer goods or services 1o 8 customer for which the Company has seceived
eonsideration from the customer. If 8 customer pays consideration before the Company transfen goods or services 1w the
customer, 3 contract Bability 1 recognized when the payment is made. Contract habulities are recogrized as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract

Asscts and Habilities wrising from

Right of return asseis

Right of retum weset represents the Company's nght to meover the goods expected to be retumed by customers. The asset 1
measurcd at the former carrying amount of the inventory, kess any expected costs o recover the goods, inchuling any potential
deceeases in the value of the retumed poods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions o
s expected level of reums, as well a3 any addinonal w1 the value of the renemed products,
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Refund labilitics

A refund hability v the obliganon to refind some or all of the consideranon received (or receivable) from the costomer and is
measured at the amount the Company ultmately expects it will have to retem o the customer. The Company updates its

estimates of eefund labilities (and the corresponding change in the tanmction price) at the end of sach reporcting pesiod. Refes
1o above sccounting policy on varable considertion,

Other Revenue

Profit on Investment s recognited on sccnul basie. Oither masceflaneows revenues and donation are recogmazed s and when
reafized of received.

Financial instruments

A fnancial instrament bs any contract that gives rise to 3 financial asser of one entity and a Bnandal lability o equity instrament
of another entity.

Financial assets

Financial assets - initial recognition

Fumancial assets are clusafied, ot mnal recogninon, and subsequently measured ot amornzed cost, fur valee through other
comprehensive income (OC), and Gir value through peofit o loss.

The classification of financial assets a1 initial recognition depends on the finanoal asset’s contractual cash Aow chanctensocs
and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the excepnion of trade debis and bank balance that do not contain
a sygnificant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company mially
measures 4 financial asset o inn fair value plus, in the case of o fnancial asset not at fair valoe theough profit or loss, ansacton
costs. Trade debts that do not contin o significant financang component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient are I ar the tion poce determined under IFRS 15 Refee to the accountng policy in revenue
FECOpTLtaon.

In order for & financial asset to be classified and messured af amonieed cost o faer value through OCLL it necds 1o give nse to
eash fhiws that are ‘solely payments of poncipal and interest (SPPI) on the prncipal amount cutstanding.

This assessment o refereed to as the SPPI test and i performed ot an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managmg financial assets refers (0 how it manages it financial assets in onder to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contracmal cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within o time frame established by segulation or convention
in the marker place (regular way trades) are recagnized on the trade date, Le., the dare that the Company commits to purchase or
scll the ssser

The Company’s financial assets melude long-term deposits, trade debts, sdvances, trade deposits, profit accroed and bank
bulsnces,

Financial assets - subsequent messurement

For purposcs of subsequent messurement, financial assers are classfied in four categories

1) Financial assets at fair valoe through profit or loss
b} Financial assets at amortzed cost (debst instmuments)
¢} Financual assets designated ar fair vaboe through OCH wath no reeycling of comulstive gaings and losses upon derecognation

{eguiry instruments)

d) Finasicial nssets st fair value through OCT with eecyeling of cumulative gains and losses (deb instruments)

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant 1o the Company. The Company measures financial asscts st amortized cost if bath of the
“fallowing conditons are mee:

The financial asset is held within o business model with the objective to hold Anancal assets o ooder to collect contractual cash
flovwrs; andd

The contegciual terms of the financul asset give nse on specificd dates to cash flows that are soldy payments of principal and
interest on the pancipal smount oumtanding

Financial ssscts 3t amortized cost are measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and aie subject w
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impairmient. Gaing and losses are recognized in statement of income and expendinise when the asset is derecognized, modified
or impained.

The Company’s financial assets ar amortized costs inchudes long-term depoaits, trade debts, advances, trade deposits, profit
accrued and bank balances.

The Company docs not have financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss or fase value theough OCL
Financial assets - Derecognition

A financial asset (or, wheee applicable 2 past of o financial asset or part of o Company of similar financial assets) is primarly
derecognized when:

The aghts to receive cash flows From the asset have expirad; or

The Company has transferred its nghts 10 recerve cash flows from the asset or has sesumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without matedal delay to a third parey ander 3 ‘pais-through® armngement; snd either () the Company has
tmansferred substangally all the dsks and rewands of the asect, or (b) the Company has neither wansferred nor cetained
subsmantially all the rsks and rewands of the asset, but has transferred contrml of the asset.

When the Company has transfesed its nghts o receive cash flows from an assct of has entered it o pass-through
armangement, it evaluates if, and to what cxtent, it has retained the rsks and rewaeds of ownership. When it has neither
transferoed nor retained substantally all the rsks and rewands of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the ssset is
recognized 1o the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognices an
associared liabiliy,. The transferred asser and the assocatcd lability are measured on 2 basis thar eeflects the rghts and
obligations that the Company has retsined.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of & guarniee over the transferred asset, is measured at the lower of the odginal
carrying amount of the assct and the maximum smount of consideranon that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial assets - Impairment
The Company recogmuzes an allowance for expected eredar losses ("ECL") for sll debt mstrements not hedd ar fuir value through
profit or boss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contracthal cash flows due in sccordance with the contract and all

the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the sssct's orginal
effective intemest mie

B Ls are recognieed in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has fiot been a significant imcrease in credst nsk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credic losses char result from default events that are possible within the next 12-
months (s 12-month BECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in ceedit rish since sl
recognition, a loss allowance is required for coodin losses expected over the semaining life of the exposure, imespective of the
timing of the defuult (3 lifetime BCL). A fmancial asset is wntten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovenng the
contractual cash Bows.

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in caloulating ECLs based on lifetime expected crodit lossen, The
Company has established 3 provision matex that is based on the Company's histoncal credsr Joss experience, adjusted for
forsnrd-looking factoe specific to the debtors and the economic environment. The expected credit losses are recognized in the
statement of income znd expenditure.

For bank baknces, the Company apphes s smplified approach in calculaong ECLs based on hfenme expected credit losses. The
Company reviews intemmal and external information available for each bank balance to asseas expected credit loss and the
Iikelihood to receive the outstanding contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of income
and expenditure.

Financial Habilities
Financial Kabilities - initial recognition

Financial habilities are classified, at il recogrution, s fnanaal labdites st fir value through sttement of income and
expenditure, loans and bormowings, payables, or as denvatives designated as hedging mstroments in an effectve hedge, an
appropeiate.

All financial abilines are recopnieed wgally at faie value and, in the case of loans and borowmgs and payables, net of diceetly

 attriburable mransaction costs

The Company's financial habiliies include shore term borcowings utilized under mark-up amangements, erediton, lease
Imshiliries, acerued and other labilities.

Financial lishilities - subsequent
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Loans and borrowings

After initial L Disdn} and bocrowings are subsequently measured at amoetized cost usig the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) method. Guine and losses are recognized in statement of income and expenditure when the lahilities are
derecognized as well as theough the EIR amartization process.

Amoetized cost is calculated by aking into sccount sy discoumt or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that arc an meegral
past of the EIR The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the staterment of income and expenditure.

This category spplics o short tenn borrowings utilized wnder mark-up arcangements, creditors, lease Habilities, accrued and
her Babilis

Financial liabilitics - derecognition

A financral babakity 1w derecognized when the obligaton under the hability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an

existing financial linbility is teplaced by another from the same lender on substannally dsfferent terms, or the terms of an existing

liabality are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the onginal lability and the

recognition of & new lability, and the difference in the respective canrying amounts is recognized in the statement of income and

expendinere.

Taxation

Mo provigon for txation has been charged as the Company is entitled to rax credit equivalent fo tax lababity under section
100{C) of Income Tax Crdinance, 2001.

Foreign currency transaction

Transctions in foreign currencies are translated into presentation currency st the mtes of exchange prevailing on the dae of
transacion. Monetary assets and habibines denomanated in foceagn currencies are translaed at the mtes rubing on the reporting
date.

Noti-monctary asscts and habilities are tranalated using exchange mtes thar exised when the values were determined. Exchange
differences on foreign currency translations are included in strement of income and expendinane.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and eash eqavalents comprise cash in hand and cash ar banks o0 cutrent and deposit sccounts snd otha shon emm
highly liquid instrumnents that are readily convernible into known amounts of cash and which are subjeet to insignificant dak of

changes in values
ljarati

ljurah as per IPAS 2 s classified as operating lease izrespective of whether the significant asks and rewards are rerined by lessor
or not. Payments made under jjarsh are charged 1o statement of income and expendstare on o straight-line basis over the ijamh
term unless another systemanc basis is sepresentative of the ome pattem of the Company’s benefit.
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11388028 11,388,023
(A A1S) (388,315
LIME08, e
w3 2032
Rupoes Rupees
80,000 4,06
12,679,007 58.050,781
mﬂ 3,088,129
13,857,504 1,108,510
- 100,000,000
13,967 S04 160,153,
nn a0
Rupees Rupses
23843 121841
B T in e
Wiy on
Hupces Rupees
279040 24,423 8800
BIRAN D

61 This mchiades monthly dedusction from salary of employees sgainst the vehicles provided (o them, it is Company's policy 1o deduct 65% of cost of wehicle
over the 1eaure of sjsrah From employees” mlary and begal entitheenent i trsnsdferrmd g0 cmployer ot e end of the ash tenure

Lesse babslnes
Less: Cuareent mustursty watiun | year

Ay i
Rupees Rupees
155,012,378 141,837,597
(DAY (s0478D))
115,587,474 $85114
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ASSOCIATION POR ACADEMIC QUALITY
(A COMPANY BET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Lease liabiliry-Properry
Opening halance

Add: Asscts lensed dusing the year
Lesu: Termnanon

Lewn: Paymenss / sifjustmenis
Maodificanin sdpantmeis
Fimsnce coms

l]mu;l!il.um
Iﬂl:l:mpnruhn

M 2032
Rapees Rupees
140,537,537 151,221,100
21,510,254 66,291,012
= O704LIHT)
(62,44 Bk} {60,255, THE)
31,665,508
248482 20,341,158
55012378 140,557,547
(39,424 904 ) (40,67R,42Y)
[N A4

171 The pancipal paymenis due under the lrss sgroements sgegse 10 Ha. 15501 mllon @022 fa 140,53 milhon] sod arc paysbe m monhly instalinens

under various sgrecments, bitest by Okcsober 2028, The 1 vihats of lrine [y have been discounted st Lessee’s imcromental bormoreang
wate, which m 1559 % e 25707
013 T+
o Supoume i Rupny Amowsi g hopess
Preseun valise
"::"‘ of minimus  Finsocial “:“_"‘ :""'“":: fmmrcul
Igase charges rhangrs
[raymments PaTEm | i
Mupers. e ........nmm.i.:;......_T_.
67 595, 148 ¥ 24,00 IH S D 57w gy 17,120 A58
DS Wik s o WISIZIET  USSETAM  AS935I0 01K NI X191
D affter one yras bt mot
later than five yrass — T%11571)  ISS0ILITE 74604199 177 A50,263 180,597,337 NI
023 2002
18 Trsde credisom, sccmned and other liabilites Pwir Rupees Rupeey
Trade crediton 11,00 B BB 530107
Payable s lnsnvute of Polcy Snadies 1K1 [LFRLEERTET JRERELETREEY]
Payable s related pary - 50,039
Pecrudent Fund payable - 2,308,154
Accosed listaknes 19077 A7 41,060 634
Advances fim emgployees £ 4300, Do 4 30000
Tam dechsoied m soance L0034 L0019
I s
11 Ths sepresmis conuderation eccived from Institute of Policy Stadies, & sclated parry, for the parpose of g workang capstal reg ne This
curmed & makup st the mie of 15% per ssnum
12 This represents Re. 4.3 mallicn reccived  sdvance for sabe of lend o an employee. However, doe to dispote snnng danng legal trsnsfer of land, sale of land
hu“wﬂﬂtmmhhmum.m
¥ Costract Uabilities S . (1] 012
Advance [pom cusioimes =y 128,545 478 7 565080
Encyclopeda sdvance subscnptssn 444 153 1 475 356
129,359,728 17,0440, 436
B.1  Hevenue eecognared mn the reporting persod that was inchuded in the conracy liabedaics balunce st the beganning of the pencd amownts s Ka22,187,520
(022 Ra, 32,280.87%)
n Eefund lahdkices 3 02
Rupees Rupees
Aussing Froem sghts of rmmum o1 42,958,198 114,084,748
[ECTNC S TR
Wl Mo i pefund halilties s fllvs
AL DT July 154 T46 w.!”
Actual sales return dunng the year (108,343, 104) M4, 102,62)
Prorvusscn for the year 137, 112548 042
WIMT_ 18545400
At M0 Juna Hassd et 14,0154, 748
02 The Compuny iable: conud mhrﬂ&dnhmmhhu&nﬂﬂhﬂﬁwﬂmmwm
mmmwmmJMqu“hWMmm“ﬂtmm ppbed 10 d the exp
valee of the vanable & Any sagrufi wkuwhwmmﬂm!lhnﬂﬂm
percentages estimated by the Company,

<




= ==

r—

ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UF UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2007)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

il
pil|

{hnllm‘t{h-nit-ﬂh
Contingencies

The comgpany had entered info agroement with s emphoyes for sale of lead and m ths regand adhance smounting Ra. 4.3 million had been recerved from the
ermployee & disclosed in note 18,2 However dusng legal priceedeng for tranafes of land, s dupue has been adentified over the il In sccondance with the
sale agrecement, w case any deapute w rused relanng o the kind, the Company wall be kabile to refisd the amount recerved slong wath suschamge of an eul
wmsount. Management of the Company, based on fscts of the case, i confident that the ouscome of the case wall be i favor of the Company,

Commitmenis
Coenmuement s year ond sre Nl (022 Ra Ml)

R froan 1 with ¢ - met

Encyclopedia mooma
Wisrkshops, trasnings, mectings and sermunars

Set out bebow w the deaggregation of the Company’s pevenue from contracts with customern:

Ll.u.l”unhmﬂ
Irmpeevexd besodia

Revenue i recogrueed as folkows:

Ab i pinat m tame
Cvee periad ol Hine

Chher income

Peafit on bask scoousis

Miscellaneous

Cinin on sale of old mock
Winse-of of suppler balance

Ciam o0 chisposal of lease Lslnkay
[ilnmdkpula[m.pllﬂlﬂdw‘nﬂ

Thas rep the s d frcam thie sale of obsolete wventory

“Thas repeesents the income recognized from wninog off the balance cwed 1o oo uf the company's

JL

It
20r

M2y .1
Rupees Rupees
4,200,901 648 3,608,061 651

sexso s0a)| [ (1357 ek hs)
{108,343, 104) {87 435,250
(28,938,447) (25,112,802,
(L719.788,087)  (1ATORIATIE)
2,494,116, 591 2168,146,933

B 476510 PASLIN
24,000,192 21,200, 453
31576700 30,453,664

—Zmeena  aimsnin
1484 134, 050 2034,877,029
1,110,080, 541 § 33,260 1
L, DI

2494, 116,591 168,146,953
R2STND _Ms)ehs

2,198 17
w023 w032
Rupees Hugpesa

1,040,002 3,281 504

96,038 11,141,755
164 650
4,874,320

- 24379986

25,658,707 5,794, TR
3,055 420

A3.BE9 167 42598 086
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE M, 2023

L

2023 batrr)
Dvirect Cost Moty Rupees Hupees
Raw mstenal consumed M 426,128 523 214,682 346
Pranting cost 1,449,134,233 H71,250,20%
Freight it 110,136,279 51,770,327
Waorkshop, traming, mectngs smd scmmars eaperies 34,344 490 2T, TIE 044
Encyckpedi prning 484,501 704882
Salarsen, wages srwl bemefin M4 102,759,740 B, 2200, 1861
Chutsourcing research cost 58,648,351 49,549,892
Packing expenses 6,211,992 5,791,004
Plates comumed 51,536,625 12,050,660
Insurance Hhe BR0 245814
Exchange Juss 136,199,730 1418970
Impasrment of nngible s - 2156028
2,076,872,252 1,322,249, 946
Opening work in process 1,579,403 | BHS,135
Clossng work in process A . {1,579,405)
(5.491,449) (691,268)
Cost of goods manufactured 2,071,%80,503 1,321 558,6TH
Opening finished goods m.m,m’] 304,465,177
Clowng finsbed grasds L (729,794,221 (386,237,045
(343,557, 126) 28 2
Dhwrect cost - manufsctured books and imports 1,727,823,678 1320, THG, 160
Raw material consumed 203 022
Rupees Rupees
Opening smwck 12,42426 18,124,545
Add : Purchases durmng the year 458,501,744 189,500,227
471,444,170 kv Rprd
Closing siock ' (45.315,347) (12006
e e
Finished goods consumed
Oipening stock L 386,237,005 394,465,177
Purchases from Import T63,089,X74 537302
Tranafer from work-m-process §20,703,597 §AROOT 2002
Coasmption (1, 231,705,929) ({10F4, 160, 728)
Right 16 recerver inpact on C0O6 #i (50,769,700) (43, TUT 20
ight to gecoves inpact on slock e 42,239 883 35 204 3462
Closing stock 729,794,231 366,237,005
“Thia inchudes contrbuton made io provident fund by the Company smounting io Ra. 3,520,430 (2022: Rs. 2832.511)
2013 F.i.r]
Administrative and G 1 Exg Mo Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wages and benefits 25t A3 475,275 20,802 282
Uttilisies 6,805,628 5417054
Chffice supplies 2,165,274 1,797 20
Computer expenses = 3.901B47 G50,60%
Travelling and conveyance 6,366,527 13,227,019
Entermasnment DA AE2 190015
Praming, yrionery and photooopies i 9,151,102 6,197,252
Postage and cousier 1,680,030 3147535
Mewapaper and periodicals 0,045 57300
Legal and professional charges LAT9AZ2 1,442,500
Audster’s remuncrtion 5,000 BiH, 000
Hent, rses snd fxes - 77,0061
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY
(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

g E

i

203 xx
Rupees Hugees
Hepair and maintenance 7.411,035 5457542
Commumcatnn charges 6,325 461 6,347 950
Insucance 5,135,617 23814627
Fee and subserpuon LB5L23E 3,138,696
Commisson 252 3,557,362 154,780
Donations 11,842,000 3B H07. 169
Allowance for expected coodat kosses 1o.s 17,145 080 =
Dieprectation - mamed asscts LAH ] 3,180,007 5,041 507
Diepeociation - tyght of use nssets 27 15,600,116 27,511,168
Amoniestiin on ntangible @ 1,568,260 -
Miscellansns 10,426,668 4,255 102

IH‘&“ 174,662 004

“This inchudes contrbution made to peovident fund by the Compasy smounung o Rs. | 489413 (2022: K. 942,023).
Royalty pasd w0 Companaes [/ Enchividiaala:

Name of the Company / Individual Registered Address Aieee,

AJK Text Hook Board Mew Cavil Sececeanat Upper Chater Mone
Emenan Sorcs PO Box 4096, Dioha , Chatar MNooe
Punjal Cormcalum and Text Book Boand E 2 Gulberg 3 Lahire Moo
Sohation Tree 555 Morth Monon Soeet Bloomingion Mone

2023 2022
Marketing and Disribution Expenses Nite Rupees Hupees
Saluries, wages und other benefits 2.1 303,338 548 IT9AT4 515
Utilities 10,224,499 221,596
Oifice supplies 1,175,900 TI0AD4
Compuier expenses 41143 158 843
Communication 1,648,592 2,720,554
Postage and courler 3,544,085 1,348,944
Travelling and conveysnce 35,045,344 16,459,535
Enteruiment 12,323,454 5135721
Prmting, stsbonery and photocopies 1579928 2,655,965
Newspaper and ponodicals 68,615 24,590
Advernisemen: snd promotional expensse 14,275,124 4,973,801
Hent, rates and taxes B6,500 33,000
Loading unlosding charges 5,842,170 4,564,483
Vehacle running and mainenance 47,083,560 29497325
Insurance 114,650 1,030,697
Diepreciation - oemed assen LA TA420,007 A TE1 D04
Depreciation - nght of use asscts 20 36,413,602 18, 40,778
Mistellano s 1,154,345 201032

HT,EM._.B_. !-ﬁ.'-l'ﬁl.il!_
This inchudes contsibution made u provident fund by the Comgary smounsing o He 10,392,040 (22 Ha. 9,180,975).

2023 022
Finance Cost ] Rupees Hupeey
Profit paid on financmg arrangements 270 16,900,000 3 040, (00
Tarah rentsds 14,784,773 19,800,314
Bank charges 5157 101,630
Mark-ap on lexse lahdines 23,753,994 20183158

Haﬁ ﬁ!iigllﬁ

This mncludes en smosnt equivakens to s 15 millen paad 0/IFS, & relited party, under the agency agroement exccued wath the said party.

According io the agreenscnt, the company sclls iz stock worth Re 100 million wo TIP3 snd concutrently enten info an agency contract. This contrsct

lates that the o y will sell the saock of Ra 100 millios From [P5 o the end consumer, and, a4 part of the srmungement, wall remat B 15
nﬂmmfﬁ.mwﬂhliﬂm-mhnmmhm
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Taxation

No provision for tuton has been changed s the Company i entited o tax ceodit equivalent bo tax lability under seceion 100(C) of locoeme Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

Related party tramsactions
The related parties comprise associated undentakings, dirccton of the Company, ey management pessonnel and post employment benefis plans

Amounts due from snd o rclated parties, If any, se shown under respective noses o the fnancal ssatements. The Company esters o
transsctions with related parties st arm's length poce.

Transacton with key mansgement personnel are desclosed in note 30 1o these financial ststerments.

Name amd Relationship with the Company Description 2023 2022
Rupees Hupees
Ineenations] Sehool of Cordobs (Common direcoeship) Sales during the year - 203,748
Collection during yesr 9,000 203,760
Advanor &l yeas end 58,999 40,999
Read Foundanon (Common dircctonthip) Sales durng the year 9,282 618 3, sl 00
Lulection dusng year 8,911,313 LET4812
Lt 10,0080, 00K 15,448,357
Amouant writhen off - 3,560,802
Advance st yrar eod 371,304 011,313
Gireen Ceescent Trust (Comemon darccioeshap) Sales dunng the year TU, 162 1,596,273
Calletion during year 793,152 2448541 |
Receivable st year end FLE 23,789
Grharal Fducanon Trus (Common duireciomshap) Sules durng the yeas 1.910,650 330,043
Collection disting year 162,261 240,347
Receivalie af yras end 4,070,609 M2z
Chincees Hdmeation Pouadation (G Ereciebip) Doaation s 12293517
Linbiliy a5 ai year end - .
Iraeisuie of Polcy Studes (Common derecineshap) Sales dusng the year - 100, 0000, D
Culleciion during the year - 22,500,000
Lihiliy an year eod 100,000,000 HEHDL D, £
Fimance Cost 15,000,000 15,000,000
Financial Risk Management
The Company’s scuvities expose it o vanery of finsncal nske market b (indudng curency ek, cther poce nik end merest rsie ok, coedis

risk and liguidity eisk. The Universin's overall csk msnagement polices focuses on the unpredictability of fmancial markets and seeks 0o minimize
potential sdverse ciferis on the financial performance.

The Board of Diuectors has overall sesponsibadny fioe the establishment snd oversighn of Company’s mak Management framework. The Board s alio
responsible for developing and itcsting the Compeny's sk munageement policies.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party 1o & fnencial instnemenst will cavse & financial loss for the other party by fling w dischage sn
oblsgation. The carrying amount of finencial sssees represents the musimum credsn exposare. The Company's credst mk is sserbussble o us
deponits, trade s other recevables, profit sccrued and bank balances. The maximum exposure o oredit sk st the reportang date was s ks

Exposure ta credit risk
The carrying values of fnancial assets sepresent the muximam credst exposure. The musimam exposre s crodit dsk ot the reporting date sas

023 W22
Rupees Hupees
Liang tenm doposi 23,287,677 16,775,007
“Trade delts 319,03, 715 206,195,197
Shart term sdvances 73,707,539 74,710,321
Prepay and other recetvalih 19,579,365 3,00 53
Profn scerued 4,725 2332081
Bank balances 13,967 504 161, 108,00
H_!am mi'%
Coodit ruk related w trade debis i managed by establashed procedisocs and relating 1o cusinmens crodit rsk mansgement. Chaneandeng

fran ArE TE ". ML
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 41 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 201T)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3, 2023

Set oul below is the informaton about the crodsn nak cxposure on the Company's ade debis wsing & provasion matne

Outstanding Exposure| Expected credit |Expected credit loss

As at 30 June 2023 bias rate
Past due 1-30 days 296,529,220 204 6,057,707
Past ddue 3160 days 5,599,373 15,50 756,128
Paar due 6190 days £3,353 BATH il
Past due 91180 days 1,045,152 MY 463,263
Past duc 181365 days 9,343,956 4284% 4,020,078
Past due 366730 days 6,948,325 B2.60% 5,739,508
Past duse TH-above days 9,150,337 100 9,150,337
Tatal m&ﬂﬁ w
(hmndhgf.upuuulﬁxpﬂnudnﬂlh- Expected credit o
As a1 30 June 2022 i
Past due 1-30 dayps 241 576,668 0.02% 44,983
Past due 31=60 duys 10,508,251 0.04%, 6,082
Past due 61-90 days 3,970,745 0.24% Y418
Past due T1-180 days 4,156,605 0.92% 38,186
Pase due 181-305 days 3540713 ER-E 1T 440
Pang due 366-TH0 duys 18,240,264 2T HEY 5,085 885
Pasr due T3 -above days 3,681,951 100 3,681,951
Tousl aﬁlﬁlﬂ 1043

The crecit quality of financisl ssets that are neithir past due nor spaired can be sssessed by eeference o extermal eredit ntings (17 avadable) of w
historical information sbow courerpamy definl e ‘The mble belirw shevas the bank balances held with sme major counterpartes ot the

repesrting dase:

i w2 w022
HRating Haring
Shawrt term Laong werm Rupees Rugpeces

Bank balances
Lhndved Hank Lamiced Al+ AA+ PACHA 10,081,676 (EREEER
Meezan Bank Limaed Al+ AA+ PACHA 1,366,252 A GO8 T
Bank Alfalsh Limised Al+ AM- PACHA 10,720 4T i
Bank lalami Pakistan Limised Al AA+ JER-VIS 244 00 0976
Bank Al Habib Al+ AAA PACKEA 1,218,576 3,280,578
Al Barsks Bank Limised A1+ AAA PACRA 535471 20470010
Burj Bank A-l+ AAA PACHA 425,773 02,537

13,857 504 1,108,910

The carrying amoant of nancisl asscts represents the maximom credat exposure. The manmmum exposurne 1o credst dak a1 the reponting date was as
frllows:

2 2022
Neoste Rupces Hupees
Prepayments and other roccivables 2z 19,579,565 3,008, 530
Hank balsnos I+ 13,967 S04 163100, 110

ﬁ?& 1.Hllﬂ E

b} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in nuarket price, such as foreigs euchange rates, interen mies and equity prices will effect the ooganiration’s
income oc the valse of s holdings of financal mstumens. The oby of market rak mamagement B 0 mansge end conuol marker ek

¥ within scoepable parsmesers, while optimizing the




ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY
(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(i) Imteress rate nisk

Isiberest rase risk arises From the possibility that changes in interest rmtes will affect the vahue or futare cash Bow of finencal inrtruments.
A:hmﬁu_hmmpmﬂmmiwwminm

P

w1 022
Pume Rupees Hupees
Variable rate instraments
Halances mantained with banks 4 13,967,504 161,109,110

The rates of interest have been dischosed in the respective noscs 10 the finsncul statements.

(i) Price risk
Price risk i the risk that the fair value or faruee cash flows of & financial mstnsment will Buctuate because of changes m market prices {other than
those arising from cusmency risk of inserest raie risk), whether those changes are caused by facton apecific 1 the individual financal mstrument o
5 msuier, or faciors affectiog all sieies finsncal imstrumeots traded in the marke.

The organostion & not exposed 1o any prce nsks.

{iv) Currency risk
Curroncy risk & the cisk that fair values or fomee cash flows of o financial imsnsment will Rucuste became of changes m foregn exchangs mies
Carency ruk arises from sales, purchascs and rosilzing balsnces that s denominated in & curmeney oiher than fusctional cussency. The Company's
potential currency exp comprises of:
- Transactional exposure i cespect of pon-funcional corrency monetary ibens.
+ Transactona! exposure i respect of ouon-funcoonal cusrency revenues.
The potentisl corrency exposares are discussod below:
Tramsactional exposure in respect of nos-functionsl currency monetary items
Monetary itens, including fimancil assets and mabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functicnal y of the Company e
perodically rostated 10 nupes equivilent, end the associsted gain or loss # taken 1o the profic snd los scoount. The foreign currency mk rdacd 1o
mastetary dems i managed as part of the sk mssagemend straegy.

- Transactional exposure in respect of aon-functional Y e |

Mogietury items, including finsncial assets and Babdlites, denominued o comencies otber than the functional cuartency of the Company ae |
perioddically restated 1o napee equivalent, and the sssociaied gain or loss i tken b the profis and loss sccount. The foreign currency ruk eclated 10

mionetary nems B managed a3 part of the mk mansgement strasgy.

{2) Liquidity riak
Ligusitizy risk pedleces the emisy's insbaity i rusing fonds 10 meet commitments, The ofganisation mansges lqusdiy dsk by mameining sufficent
cash annd balances with bunks. As a June 30, 2007 there & po masnenry mismarch between financial assets and labilisies that caposes the
- enganizaten o Bquidity riak.
Contracmal maturities of financial Babilides as at 30 Juse 2023

e [ e

|
L Carrylag vaine ﬂ““f:::""‘ Less than 1 year ""x:“" Moce thian 5 years
_ Rupees Rupees Hupees Rupess Rupees
l_ hierovsnipnins NSIWSW  1879,5% 325,739,5% - .
Leasy Habilisies 155,012,378 155,012,378 39,424,904 1S58 474 .
; 75 T 65 115,587,474 .
]._ Contracas] manarioes of fAnsncal habdioes as ar M June 2022
Camping vabie | COURTRIER | ) than 1 yeur B'“‘""',_;“‘ * 1 | Niovs e S yeirs
! g a et [ Hupees Rupees Tup Rupees
E ather Habilsties 242,196,243 242,196,243 242,196,243
Lease liabdinies 140,537,537 140,537,557 H6TBATS 9,459,114

| AR2,75, 780 362,733 780 262 W74 866 9,850,114 -
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY

(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 41 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2007)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2023
30.2 Financial instruments by category 2023

e -‘. e Amortized cost Tanal
;l*n Rupees Rupees
Long serm deposin = 20287 6T 26T
Trade debis 329,039,715 329,000,715
Sheort teem sdvances - 73,707,539 7307 58
Prepayments and other svceivables 19,379,565 19,379,565
Profir sccrsed - 4,725 4,728
Bank balinces 13,967 504 = 13,967 504
15,967,504 445,419,221 459,386,735
[ i ol
P by category 2022 |Cnl1 and uﬂmwﬂtml Amorized cost T
Rupees Rupess Hupees
Lung texm deposit 1,T75017 16,775,017
Trade debu 286,105,197 284,195,197
Short jenm advances T4T10321 74710521
Prepayments snd other rocenvables 3,008 530 3,008,530
Profis sccrued - 2332061 2,352,041
Hask halenees 161, 108 50 a 141,108,909
161,108,900 3,021,146 544,130,055

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Financial lishilities st amortized cost

2023 222

Rupees Rupess
Trake eveduine, sccnusd wnd viber Rabilsises 325,750,530 242196243
Lense labilites 155 I A7.537
lﬂ,ﬁw_ HET.'-IETHU

Fair value messurement of financial instruments

Fair value s the estimated poce that woukd be mecerved e sell an asset or paid so irsmaifve s labdiny 19 an orderdy wassacoon berween markes
partcipants st the mezsurement date. Undedying the defination of Buir value s the § piioa that the organt i i and there n
0 intenBon of requanement (o curtal materally the scale of is openation o w0 undenake & transaction on adverse tenma.

The wbie below analyses financial instrusments carried ai fair value, by valuation method, The different levels bave been defined as follows:

Lavel 1: Quobnd (unsdjusied) prces in sctive markets for dentical sssces o abilities.
Lavel T Cnher sechnsques for which sll ingrues which have » significant effect on the reconded faer value are obhservable enher, deecily or mdieecdy.

Level 3: Techniques whach use inputs that have 3 sigraficant effect on the recorded fuis value that are not based on observable markes duts,

The cacryng values of fnancial ssscts and fnancial labilitses refleoiad n Gnancial stalements approimace their fadr values, Fair valse b determined
o the basis of objective evidence ot esch eporting date. There were no menasfers beraven difforent levels of fair vaboes during the yoar

Valuation iechniques used to determing faie values

Laevel 1: The fasr value of fmsncial instnements maded m sctive markets o based on qoowed marker peces a0 the balance sheet dae. A marker s
eegarded as sctive if quoted prices are seadily and regulardy availsble from an exchange, desler, beoker, inshustry group, pocng service, o regulstory
agency, wnd those prcos ropoosent sonesl and cogulady oeournng markct wansecuons 00 sn srm's keagth basis These insruments s included in
Level 1

Level X The fadr value of fnancisl nstruments thal aoe not irsded in en scrive market is detenmined by asing appeopriste valuston iechmigques.
These vahuation sechng the s ool olservable market data whem it is svailablo and ey s linke s possible on entigy specalfic ratimanes.
1§ ll wigmificant inputs requiced o Fair value sn imitrument ase observabile, the instrument i sppropostely induded in Level 2

Level 3: If one o more of the significant imputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument i ncluded in Level 3

Oifsotting financial ssects sod fosncial habilitics

Theoe & no sgnificant finsncul assets and fnancial liabilites that are subgect 0 offseting, enforceable muster netting emengement snd mmikar
agroTTnctis -

Fund risk management
The ogenoaton’s objectives when managing funds are 0 safegaend the onganazation’s abilisy 1 contanue &3 4 gueng concor in wder o peovile
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ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY
(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
rotusn for sharcholders and benefin for other stakeholdens and 1w muintsin beabihier capital moos 0 ocder i sappont i business and maxomae
sharcholders value. The organizanon manages s fusd strscture and makes sdpstments 1o g, i the light of changes in economee conditions. To
miiniamn or sdpust the fund stractare, the otganization may sdju dividend paymenis o the shareholders, retarm on fund 1 sharehalders.

LN
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The organizaton’s steasegy, whach was unchanged from last year, was to maintan optienal fund sersttarce in ender o manbrse con of fend.

Remuneration Of Chiel Executive Officer, Directom And Executives

The aggeegate amount charged 1o these fmancil e hon inchudmg all benefin i Chicf Executive Uificer, Direciors and
Executives of the Coempany is s Follrws:
2023 022
Chied E i Chief E
Executive - Eaccutive

Manuggerial remancration T T MK V5928016 7,776,000 61,905 660
Reimbuesable expenscs 414,052 14,987,106 270248 7.025,633
Contnbuson w provident fund 431,832 5201462 A41 L0 AT T8

8,701,884 116,106,674 5,496,258 72,335,019
Mumber of pemons 1 59 1 48
Chuef Execunve COifficer and certam Hyeoutives of the Company are p ded with Comspany msintamed vohackes.

Mo remunertion was paid 1o direcsoes of the Cosmspany,
Provident Fund

The Company fas maintamed sn employes providens fund snd invesnenms has been made in sccondance with the provisions of secoon 216 of the

Companics Act, 2017 sl the condstions specified thersunder.

wn 22
Rupees Huspeees
Siwe of the fund 75,516,204 59,520,380
Cowt of mvestenen: mads 611,220,731 49017 450
Percentage of ivestment made L0 1007
Fair value of investment 0,230,791 A9H1T 450
Beeakup of investment 2023 2022
Invesument Inwvestmeng
t"":'"“" s Vonlaly  TTHmC 52 % of sise
S af the fund Rapess of the fand
Bank balance in schoduled bank 60,220,731 10 ADE1T 450 Todr
Number O Employees 2023 2122
A et year oned 455 42
Average number of employoes during the year 7 440
Duate O Authorization

mwummm&w“hhhmdﬂbcmdhfmmmm




.- ASSOCIATION FOR ACADEMIC QUALITY
(A COMPANY SET-UP UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE M, 2023
g 3. General
351 Figures has been mounded off 1o the meancst Rugee,
3.2 Comesponding fgures have been re-classified wherever necessary to reflect more appropoate presentston of events and ansscoons for the

—

pruarpose of cumg
Reclassified Amoust
Diesc Reclassified from  Now Nivte
g L. (Rupees)
Rechssificaton of fregght inwand foom printing kocal Digwcr cost N Direct cost 3 51770
L cost b freght inwand = i id
Reclassification of shisrt iorm investmen from cusmen o : Bt b
sccount 80 shon teom investment in cash and cash (2] 4 N0, 00K, CH
v es e
I- oquivalent
Reclassificaion o training ffrom AL
sileninistrative and genersl e 10 murketing and Mdmumivesnd o 24 1,713
1 O]
distribution expense vohicle gescral experscs fistrdi
expenses
Beclussificaton of exchange loss fruen printing cose s
evclunge ke et cost M M 1418970
!
ﬂ € Z——} Cle e - ’ —
Chief Exceutive O fficer Dvirector




OFFICES IN PAKISTAN

Lahore Office:

193 - A, Shah Jamal,
Lahore,

Phone  +92 (0) 42 35403550
+92 (0} 42 35403551
+02 [0) 42 35403588

Fax +92 [0) 42 35403599
Email Infa@uby-hnco.com
Isiamabad Office;

West Lower Ground, Pak Plaza
[19-A), Fazal Ul Hag Road,
Blue Area, Islamabad

Phane +92 (0} 51 2873431
+#92 (D) 51 2873432
+57.(0) 51 2873433
Fax +92 (0) 51 2873430

Karachi Office:

402 Progressive Center,
30-A, PECHS, Block-6,
Shahrah-e-Faksal,
Earachi.

Phane  +82 (0} 21 34304082
+92 {0) 11 34322551
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UHY INTERNATIONAL

UHY Hassan Naeem & Company

is a member of Urbach Hacker Young
International Limited, a UK company,
and forms part of the international
UHY network of legally independent
accounting and consulting firms.
UHY is the brand name for the

UHY Iinternational network.
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